
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Thursday, 18 July 2019. 
 01476 406080

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Friday, 26 July 2019 at 2.00 pm
River Room - Jubilee Church Life Centre, 
1-5 London Road, Grantham. NG31 6EY

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman)
Councillor Chris Benn (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Bob Adams, Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor 
Adam Stokes, Councillor Mark Whittington, Councillor Paul Wood and Councillor Sue 
Woolley

Agenda
1.  Membership

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

2.  Apologies

3.  Disclosure of interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4.  Minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2019 (Pages 3 - 10)

5.  Updates from previous meeting

Governance 
and Audit 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


6.  External Audit - Annual Governance Report (Pages 11 - 32)

7.  Statement of Accounts including Annual Governance Statement

8.  Treasury Management Annual Report 2018/19
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance

(Pages 33 - 42)

9.  Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent.



Minutes
Governance and Audit Committee
Friday, 21 June 2019

Committee members present

Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Chris Benn (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Gloria Johnson

Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman)
Councillor Mark Whittington
Councillor Paul Wood

Officers Cabinet Members

Assistant Director, Resources (Richard 
Wyles)
Assistant Director, Commercial and 
Operational (Ian Yates)
Assistant Director, Housing (Harry Rai)
Interim Head of Legal (Shahin Ismail)
Head of Finance (Alison Hall-Wright)
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey 
Elliott)
Corporate Compliance Officer for Health 
and Safety (Phil Swinton)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

Councillor Robert Reid
Councillor Adam Stokes

Internal Audit

Amjad Ali, RSM
William Hollis, RSM

External Audit

Paul Harvey, Grant Thornton

1. Apologies

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Woolley.

2. Disclosure of interests

No interests were disclosed.

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2019

As the Chairman was the only Member who had been present at the Committee’s last 
meeting, he confirmed that the minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2019 were a 
correct record.

3

Agenda Item 4



4. Updates from previous meeting

At previous meetings the committee had received updates with respect to ongoing 
issues with a small number of boilers that had been fitted in some council properties. 
The boilers, which had been installed in approximately 215 properties, had a fault that 
had led to pipes freezing. 

The Assistant Director, Housing provided committee members with an update on the 
current position. Council had resolved that a report should be presented to the 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Following Council’s resolution, the 
Cabinet Member for Housing had changed, as had the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees. To allow sufficient time to ensure that the new Cabinet Member was 
comfortable with the proposed action and budget implications, a report was scheduled 
to be presented to the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s 
September meeting.

Members were appraised of the actions that had been taken to date. The Cabinet 
Member wanted to look at all boilers, not just those that had been affected by the fault. 
This review was being carried out in conjunction with the annual service of gas boilers 
and to date 4,500 had been assessed. Further assessments would be carried out during 
the summer of 2019 and those properties where mitigation was needed would be 
prioritised and action taken. All new boilers that were fitted included an internal 
condensate discharge. 

While there were no reports of frozen pipes in the winter of 2018/19, members were 
mindful that temperatures had been mild.

In response to questions put by committee members, the Assistant Director, Housing 
explained that the Council achieved 99.8% of all annual gas services. The numbers with 
which the committee had been provided referred to those visits that had been made 
after the issues had been reported.

One Member referred to a specific property that had experienced frozen pipes, stating 
that the occupant had not been visited nor received any contact from the Council. As 
the matter had been reported 18-months prior, disappointment was expressed about the 
lack of contact. Another member also expressed concern about the amount of time that 
had passed since the issue had first been raised. Members were advised that the 
Council was visiting all properties with gas boilers. The Assistant Director, Housing 
stated that he was not aware of the specific address and so unable to comment. He 
offered members the opportunity to have early sight of the report that would be 
presented to the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee to ensure 
that it addressed the concerns that they had raised. 

4



5. Internal Audit Annual Report 2018-19 and Follow Up Report

Internal Audit Annual Report 2018-19

The Senior Manager from RSM, the Council’s internal auditor presented the Internal 
Audit Annual Report 2018-19. In presenting the report he explained that RSM met with 
the Council’s management team on an annual basis to draw up an audit plan for that 
year and put together a 3-year strategy. Once agreed with the senior management 
team, the plan would be brought to committee for approval. During the year the 
committee would receive reports on each of the audits that had been completed, the 
recommendations that had been raised and the level of assurance given. At the end of 
each year the findings of those audits were brought together and an opinion provided on 
the Council’s governance, risk management and internal control framework.

Members were advised that for 2018/19 internal audit had found that the organisation 
had an adequate and effective framework for risk management, governance and 
internal control, which was a positive opinion. Of the 14 audits that were undertaken, 
eight were given a substantial opinion, five were given reasonable assurance and one 
audit received partial assurance. Given the number of recommendations that had been 
raised and the number of positive opinions, members expressed disappointment that 
the level of assurance was not more positive. The committee was reassured that it was 
highly unlikely for any client to receive an absolute positive level of assurance. The 
recommendations that had been raised indicated that there are improvements that 
could be made. It was also noted that in drawing up the annual audit plan, officers 
directed audit to those areas where they considered improvement was needed, which 
increased the likelihood of recommendations being raised.

The Senior Manager also advised members about the other aspect of internal audit’s 
work, which was following up on the implementation of the recommendations that had 
been made.

One member asked whether internal audit had been involved in the change to the 
council’s risk strategy as it moved from being risk averse to risk aware. In response, the 
Senior Manager explained that internal audit carried out an audit of risk and governance 
in alternate years and 2018/19 had seen a review of the council’s governance 
arrangements. Audit would review risk as part of the 2019/20 audit plan. The scope of 
the audit would include reviewing the council’s risk registers, its risk strategy and an 
assessment of other key work. Separate work was also undertaken by RSM’s 
consulting team to support the council with its risk management framework and risk 
register.

Internal Audit Follow-up Report

The RSM Senior Manager referred to the Internal Audit follow-up report, which 
explained that 8 audit reports had been followed-up. Of the 34 actions across those 
audits, 17 recommendations were medium risk and the remaining 17 were low risk. The 
audit opinion was positive, finding that reasonable progress had been made in 
implementing audit’s recommendations. 21 recommendations had been implemented 

5



and 6 were in the process of being implemented while implementation of the final 7 
recommendations had yet to begin. Those actions that had not been implemented were 
re-raised with new target completion dates. Progress would be reviewed as part of 
future follow-up reports. If recommendations had not been implemented at the time they 
were next reviewed, they would be highlighted for the committee’s attention.

Questions were asked about the audit of recruitment and retention. Members were 
advised that the audit involved a sample of vacancies, which were cross-checked with 
the staff requisition and what was advertised. The audit checked that the council was 
following its procedures, making sure appropriate budget was available; it did not 
specify the mechanism for recruitment. Any members who had concerns about whether 
the Recruitment Policy was being followed they should be raised through the Chief 
Executive as Head of Paid Service. A question was also asked about IR35 checks, with 
members being advised that the authority was statutorily required to check the IR35 
position of any contractor it temporarily employed. If there were concerns about a past 
employee then these could be looked into separately but the intention of the audit was 
to reassure members that there was a proper checking process in place and that the 
contractors that were being used were brought in for a specific purposes.

In response to questions, Members were advised that the level of assurance was 
determined by progress made against the number of recommendations that had been 
implemented or were in the process of being implemented. The percentage of 
recommendations that had been implemented determined the opinion, which was set 
out in a matrix. It was noted that no high risk recommendations were raised, and that 
many of the recommendations were low risk, house-keeping exercises. 

Members were interested in progress against the recommendations that arose from the 
fire safety audit as this was the only audit in 2018/19 that was not given a positive 
opinion. Of the 7 actions raised during the audit, 3 recommendations had been 
implemented in full, 2 that were in the progress of being implemented and 2 where 
implementation had yet to begin. Members asked specific questions about the 
recommendation relating to staff training, which had not been implemented; originally 
highlighted as a low risk recommendation, during the follow-up, it was re-categorised as 
a medium risk. Some concern was also expressed about the ‘stay put’ policy. Surveys 
were being undertaken at the Council’s sheltered housing schemes, and the policy was 
in the process of being reviewed. Management had committed to reviewing the policy 
once the review work had been completed.

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED: 

1. The Governance and Audit Committee approved the Internal Audit Annual 
Report 2018-19 prepared by the internal auditors RSM

2. The Governance and Audit Committee noted the follow-up report prepared by the 
internal auditors RSM

6



6. Outturn Report for 2018-2019

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented his report which informed members of the 
outturn position at the end of 2018/19. He drew Members’ attention to the revised 
version of the covering report, which had been circulated after the publication of the 
agenda pack. Members noted that the only change was an amendment to the text at 
paragraph 4.1.

The report included in-year changes to the budget framework, the total costs of 
provision of service for each directorate, narrative on variances between the budgeted 
and outturn positions, carry forwards where the budget had not been fully utilised, the 
HRA position which showed a reduced surplus for 2018/19 and the year end position of 
the Capital Programme.

Members were given an explanation of accounting adjustments that were made to 
remove non-cash items form the balance sheet and the impact of valuation of the 
council’s assets and depreciation. 

Table 5 of the report set out by directorate variances of £20,000 and greater against the 
budgeted position . Members suggested that it would be helpful to include an additional 
column showing the percentage variance to assist them in determining whether the 
variance against budgeted levels was significant. Members asked whether the length of 
the list of variances was normal or whether the volume was exceptional. Members were 
advised that variances had previously been grouped together, so there would not have 
been the same level of visibility. Members also noted that the level of variance that was 
reported was lower than that used by other local authorities. Members were grateful for 
the increased detail, together with the commentary, and the transparency this brought.

Reference was made to the variance in car parking income and a question raised about 
the variance associated with One SK. One SK was the Council’s modernisation and 
transformation programme, moving towards the organisation becoming more agile; it 
included the rollout of equipment to staff. Unspent funds for 2018/19 associated with the 
project would be rolled forward into the 2019/20 financial year.

Members’ attention turned to the Capital Programme and the in-year adjustment that 
had been made to fund the purchase of the Cummins site in Stamford. This purchase 
had been undertaken utilising temporary internal borrowing.  External borrowing would 
be necessary in the future to replace the displaced funding.

Some concern was expressed about the level of the underspend on disabled facilities 
grants. Work was underway with colleagues from Lincolnshire County Council to identify 
the reasons for this, including whether the delays were caused by the lack of 
occupational therapists’ assessments coming forward. It was hoped that a pilot ‘step up, 
step down’ project which would support patients coming out of hospital would reduce 
the level of the balance together with the relaxation of some requirements that would 
have historically been required to release the funding. 

7



Before members considered the recommendations set out in the report, the committee 
was given an overview of the carry forwards it was being asked to authorise and 
changes to the Regeneration Reserve policy to include feasibility work costs in respect 
of property acquisition and development. 

Members were also given an overview of a crowd funding project which had been 
considered by the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The 
Governance and Audit Committee was being asked to set aside £100k to fund a one-off 
pilot project that enables community projects by providing a platform for community 
leaders and businesses to fund projects. Spacehive would put a project on their 
platform and invite interest from the surrounding area that would benefit directly the 
project. £30k would enable the council to access Spacehive. The remaining £70 could 
be used by the Council to support any projects. As well as access to their platform, 
Spacehive bought access to expertise that could be deployed within communities to 
encourage and promote schemes. The project was designed to complement the 
Council’s ward member grant scheme and its Community Fund. The Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee was supportive of the principle of the 
scheme but wanted the opportunity in-year to robustly challenge the programme with 
the opportunity for the Council to step away from the project at the end of the year if it 
had not proven successful.

Members asked whether the outturn position of the Councillor Ward grant scheme was 
available. Information was available on the amount that had been spent and this could 
be provided to Members. The budget for both the community fund and the Ward 
Member Grant Scheme had been mainstreamed, which meant that reserve had been 
closed down.

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED that the Governance and Audit Committee:

1. Approved the Revenue and Capital Outturn report and associated appendices for 
2018/19

2. Approved the budget carry forward shown at paragraph 4.5 and reserve 
movements shown at section 7 of the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance

3. Approved the Capital slippages form the 2018/19 Capital Programme as detailed 
in the Cabinet Member for Finance’s report and shown in appendices C and E

4. Approved the change of the Regeneration Reserve policy to include financing 
any feasibility work costs in respect of property acquisition and development

5. Approved the creation of a specific reserve of £100k to fund the crowd funding 
imitative from the year end working balance

7. Counter Fraud Annual Report 2018-19

The Assistant Director, Resources gave an overview of the Counter Fraud Annual 
Report for 2018-19. He explained that South Kesteven District Council was part of the 

8



Lincolnshire Fraud Partnership, which worked across Lincolnshire to promote good 
practice, instigate counter fraud activity and provide resilience across the partnership. It 
was noted that in 2018/19 the Partnership had received recognition for its fraud training 
across schools.

The Committee noted that during the summer of 2019, officers and members would be 
required to complete a fraud e-learning module. 

Members were given an overview of data-matching exercises through the National 
Fraud Initiative that were used to identify the risk of fraud and fraudulent activity. It had 
proved particularly successful in identifying fraudulent activity in respect of the single 
person council tax discount but was also used to identify potential fraud in areas 
including housing benefit, pensions, payroll, creditors and housing tenancy.

Committee Members’ attention was drawn to the increase in whistleblowing activity. 
This service was primarily marketed externally. Whilst it was hoped that staff with any 
concerns would go through internal channels, the whistle blowing hotline provided them 
with a service that they could access where they would be guaranteed anonymity. 
Members were reassured that all whistle blowing allegations were investigated as far as 
possible, but this could prove difficult; because information was provided anonymously it 
was not possible to go back to the individual to capture any missing information. 
Members were interested in whether the increase in whistle blowing was a spike or the 
start of a trend.

Members asked about counter fraud measures that the council had in place. Members 
were advised that there were a high number of detective and preventative controls 
across the authority including separation of duties, reconciliation, authorisation limits 
and counter checks. Any new suppliers were also subject to checks to ensure their 
validity.  The checks of the internal control framework provided by internal audit were 
considered a valuable tool to prevent fraud.

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:

1. That the Governance and Audit Committee approved the contents of the report of 
the Cabinet Member for Finance including the proposed workplan for 2019/20

8. Health and Safety Annual Report 2018-19

The Assistant Director, Commercial and Operational introduced the report of the 
Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations on the Health and Safety Annual 
Report 2018/19. He stated that there were no serious issues that officers wished to 
draw to the committee’s attention and that the level of accidents did not cause concern. 
It was noted that there were parts of organisation where there was a higher risk of 
accidents, notably repairs, the works department and refuse.

It was noted that there had been some increases to the accident rates at some leisure 
centres within the district. These corresponded with increased footfall and new ways of 
recording incidents. Work had been carried out in previous years to try and benchmark 

9



the level of accidents in the district’s leisure centres but the variety of activities taking 
place at each leisure centre meant that it was not possible to draw comparisons.

Members noted that in previous years there had been concerns that the low number of 
accidents was due to under-reporting. Officers stated that those levels had been stable 
for a number of years, indicating that the low accident rate was normal for the authority. 
Measures had also been put in place to try and increase reporting of ‘near misses’.

Members asked why 46% of the total incidents recorded in the council’s figures for 
2018/19 were listed as ‘other’. Officers explained that these fell into a wide variety of 
different categories and ranged from someone getting dust in their eye to a scald. If 
there was a trend in incidents placed in the ‘other’ category, it would have been 
highlighted for Members’ attention.

The Committee was advised that officers did not get details of the incidents that 
occurred at the leisure centres but a majority of the 50 accidents on council premises 
were considered minor. Three of those accidents were required to be reported under 
RIDDOR Regulations.

Questions were asked about the frequency of accidents leading to claims against the 
Council. Officers stated that the level of claims for accidents on Council premises were 
lower than might be expected. Any claim made against the Council would either be 
defended or settled on the best terms. It was noted, however, that the 2018/19 
insurance year had been a significant year for claims both in numerical and financial 
terms when compared to the previous ten years.

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:

1. That the Governance and Audit Committee noted the key areas of focus in the 
Health and Safety Annual Report 2018/19

9. Close of meeting

The meeting was closed at 16:15.

10



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 

The Audit Findings
for South Kesteven District Council

July 2019

Year ended 31 March 201911

A
genda Item

 6



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Headlines 3

2. Financial statements 4

3. Independence and ethics 15

Appendices

A. Audit adjustments

B. Fees

C. Audit Opinion

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify 
control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements 
in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our 
prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report 
was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is 
available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

Your key Grant Thornton 
team members are:

John Gregory

Key Audit Partner

T:  0121 232 5333

E: john.gregory@uk.gt.com

Paul Harvey

Engagement Manager

T: 0116 257 5589

E: paul.m.Harvey@uk.gt.com

Vikash Patel

Assistant Manager

T: 0116 257 5987

E: vikash.patel@uk.gt.com

12



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 3

Headlines
This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of South Kesteven District Council (‘the Council’) and the preparation of the Council's financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 for those charged with governance.

Financial
Statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the National
Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are
required to report whether, in our opinion, the Council's financial
statements:
• give  a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council 

and its income and expenditure for the year; and
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the 

CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting 
and prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014.

We are also required to report whether other information published 
together with the audited financial statements (including the Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) and Narrative Report,  is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

Our audit work was completed on site during July. Our findings are summarised on 
pages 4 to 11. We have not identified any material adjustments which affected the 
Council’s reported income and expenditure or balance sheet. The impact of the McCloud 
court case gave rise to a non-material adjustment which officers have decided not to 
reflect in the accounts, but which would have increased the net pension liability by 
£1.226m. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix A. 

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that 
would require modification of our audit opinion in Appendix C, subject to the following 
outstanding matters;

- completion of outstanding sample testing in some areas

- receipt of management representation letter;

- review of the final set of financial statements; and

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial 
statements is consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and the financial 
statements we have audited.

Our anticipated audit report opinion will be unmodified.

Value for Money 
arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the
Code'), we are required to report if, in our opinion, the Council has
made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for money (VFM)
conclusion’).

We have decided to delay issuing our value-for-money conclusion. This is to enable us 
to consider whether there are any implications for our assessment of the Council’s 
governance following the very recent announcement of the departure of the Chief 
Executive, which also follows the recent departure of the section 151 officer.  We will 
complete the necessary work as quickly as possible to enable us to provide our value for 
money conclusion and certify completion of the audit.

Statutory duties The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also
requires us to:
• report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers

and duties ascribed to us under the Act; and
• To certify the closure of the audit.

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate in accordance with 
the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit 
Practice until we have completed our work to give our conclusion on the Authority’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
We are unable to issue our conclusion until we have completed our consideration of 
matters that have been brought to our attention. We are satisfied that these matters do 
not have a material effect on the financial statements.

Acknowledgements
We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

13



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 4

Summary
Overview of the scope of our audit

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are 
significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial 
reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the 
Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management 
and the Governance and Audit Committee. 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed towards forming and 
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the 
financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of 
their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

Audit approach

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and 
is risk based, and in particular included:

• An evaluation of the Council's internal controls environment, including its IT systems 
and controls; and

• Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including 
the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

We have not had to alter or change our audit plan, as communicated to you in March 2019.

Conclusion

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to 
outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion 
following the Governance and Audit Committee meeting on 26 July 2019, as detailed in 
Appendix C. These outstanding items include:

- completion of outstanding sample testing in some areas

- receipt of management representation letter; and

- review of the final set of financial statements.

Financial statements 

Materiality calculations remain the same as reported in our audit plan. We detail in the 
table below our determination of materiality for South Kesteven District Council.

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and 
the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure 
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. 

Council Amount (£)

Materiality for the financial statements 1,400,000

Performance materiality 980,000

Trivial matters 70,000

Materiality for senior officer remuneration disclosure 
note

100,000

14



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 5

Significant findings – audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

 The revenue cycle includes fraudulent 
transactions (rebutted)

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed
risk that revenue may be misstated due to the
improper recognition of revenue.
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 
concludes that there is no risk of material 
misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue 
recognition

Auditor commentary

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognition 
of revenue.

In our audit plan we rebutted this presumed risk for South Kesteven District Council because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including South Kesteven District Council, mean that all forms 
of fraud are seen as unacceptable

This assessment is still appropriate and therefore the risk is rebutted.

 Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable 
presumed risk that the risk of management over-
ride of controls is present in all entities. The 
Authority faces external scrutiny of its spending 
and this could potentially place management 
under undue pressure in terms of how they report 
performance.

We therefore identified management override of 
control, in particular journals, management 
estimates and transactions outside the course of 
business as a significant risk, which was one of 
the most significant assessed risks of material 
misstatement.

Auditor commentary

We have:

• evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals

• analysed the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals 

• tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and 
corroboration

• gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical  judgements applied made by management and 
consider their reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence

• evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of management override of controls.

Financial Statements 

15



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 6

Significant findings – audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

 Valuation of land and buildings (Rolling 
revaluation)
The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a 
rolling five-yearly basis. This valuation represents a 
significant estimate by management in the financial 
statements due to the size of the numbers involved 
(£302 million) and the sensitivity of this estimate to 
changes in key assumptions. Additionally, 
management will need to ensure the carrying value in 
the Authority financial statements is not materially 
different from the current value at the financial 
statements date, for those assets not formally 
revalued in the year.

We therefore identified valuation of land and
buildings, particularly revaluations and impairments,
as a significant risk.

Auditor commentary

We have:
• evaluated the processes, controls and assumptions put in place by management to ensure that the PPE valuation is 

not materially misstated and evaluate the design of these and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of 
material misstatement;

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of management’s experts (valuers) who carried out your PPE 
valuations;

• evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (a valuer) for this estimate and the 
scope of the valuer’s work;

• communicated with the valuer about the basis on which the valuation is carried out and where necessary challenge 
the key assumptions

• reviewed and challenged the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent with our 
understanding

• tested revaluations made during the year to ensure they are consistent with the valuer’s report and input correctly into 
the Council’s asset register

• evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how 
management have satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of the valuation of land and buildings.

Financial statements

16



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 7

Significant findings – audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

 Valuation of pension fund net liability
The Authority's pension fund net liability, as 
reflected in its balance sheet as the net defined 
benefit liability, represents a significant 
estimate in the financial statements. 

The pension fund net liability is considered a 
significant estimate due to the size of the 
numbers involved (£48.5 million in the 
Authority’s balance sheet) and the sensitivity of 
the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the 
Authority’s pension fund net liability as a 
significant risk, which was one of the most 
significant assessed risks of material 
misstatement.

Auditor commentary

We have, relying where appropriate on work carried out by the auditors of the Lincolnshire Pension Fund:

• updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the Authority’s pension 
fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

• evaluated the instructions issued to the management expert (actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Authority’s pension fund valuation; 

• assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Authority to the actuary, through the Pension 
Fund, to estimate the liability;

• tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements 
with the actuarial report from the actuary;

• undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of the 
consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within the report; and

• documented and evaluated the controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data; contributions data and 
benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

Impact of the McCloud judgement

The Court of Appeal has ruled that there was age discrimination in the judges and firefighters pension schemes where 
transitional protections were given to scheme members. The legal ruling around age discrimination (McCloud - Court of Appeal) 
has implications not just for these pension funds, but also for other pension schemes where they have implemented transitional 
arrangements on changing benefits. The LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (with the consent of the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government) commissioned GAD to prepare an assessment of the financial impact of the McCloud 
judgement on an LGPS scheme-wide basis to inform the financial reporting of participating entities. The report shows the 
estimates of the cost of the remedy if the LGPS underpin was found to result in unlawful age discrimination. 

As a result of the ruling and the GAD review, we have worked with the Council to consider the implications and as a result the 
Council have commissioned a further actuarial assessment to include the impact of the findings. As a result of the actuarial 
assessment there has been a non-material increase in the pension liability. As it is not a material adjustment officers have 
decided not to amend the financial statements.

Financial statements

17



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 8

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Financial statements

Accounting area Summary of management’s policy Audit Comments Assessment

Land and Buildings –
Council Housing -
£231.27m

The Council owns 6017 dwellings and is required to 
revalue these properties in accordance with DCLG’s 
Stock Valuation for Resource Accounting guidance. 
The guidance requires the use of beacon 
methodology, in which a detailed valuation of 
representative property types is then applied to similar 
properties. The Council has engaged the District 
Valuer to complete the valuation of these properties. 
The year end valuation of Council Housing was 
£231.27m, a net decrease of £2.01m from 2017/18 
(233.28m). 

In respect of the Land and Buildings – Council Housing we have assessed;

• the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the District Valuer who 
carried out your valuations

• the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to 
determine the estimate

• the impact of any changes to valuation method

• the consistency of the estimate against independent market trends reports

• the reasonableness of the decrease in estimate from the prior year

• the adequacy of disclosure of the estimate in the financial statements



Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious  
 We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

18



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 9

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Financial statements

Summary of management’s policy Audit Comments Assessment

Land and Buildings –
Other - £72.02m

Other land and buildings comprises of £72.02m 
of assets that are considered non-specialised in 
nature and are required to be valued at existing 
use in value (EUV) at year end. The Council has 
engaged the District Valuer to complete the 
valuation of properties as at 31/03/2019 on a five 
yearly cyclical basis. The valuation of properties 
valued by the valuer has resulted in a net 
increase of £0.4m. Management have 
considered the year end value of non-valued 
properties by engaging the District Valuer to 
undertake a desktop review of these properties 
to identified any changes in their total value. The 
total year end valuation of Other land and 
buildings was £72.02m, a net increase of £9.41m 
from 2017/18 (£62.61m).

We have considered in respect of the Land and Buildings – Other;

• the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the District Valuer who 
carried out your valuations

• the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to 
determine the estimate

• the impact of any changes to valuation method

• the consistency of estimate against near Gerald Eve report

• the reasonableness of the increase in estimate from the prior year

• the adequacy of disclosure of estimate in the financial statements



Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious  
 We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

19



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 10

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Financial statements

Summary of management’s policy Audit Comments Assessment

Net pension liability – £57.328m

The Council’s total net pension liability at 31 
March 2019 is £57.238m (PY £48.563m) 

The Authority uses Hymans Robertson LLP 
to provide actuarial valuations of the 
Authority’s assets and liabilities derived from 
the Local Government Pension Scheme in 
which it participates, (which is the 
Lincolnshire Pension Fund, administered by 
Lincolnshire County Council).

A full actuarial valuation is required every 
three years. The latest full actuarial valuation 
was completed in 2016. A roll forward 
approach is used in intervening periods, 
which utilises key assumptions such as life 
expectancy, discount rates, salary growth 
and investment returns. Given the significant 
value of the net pension fund liability, small 
changes in assumptions can result in 
significant valuation movements. 

Since the draft accounts were produced an 
updated actuarial report has been received. 
The financial statements disclosures have 
been updated in this regard.

PwC were engaged by the Audit Commission (and subsequently the NAO) as consulting actuary to 
undertake a central review of the actuaries used by the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). 

They produce a report designed to provide support to auditors when assessing the competence and 
objectivity of, and assumptions and approach adopted by, actuaries producing IAS 19 figures in respect of 
the LGPS, Police and Fire schemes as at 31 March 2019.

We use this report to inform our assessment of the valuation of the pension fund liability in the Authority’s 
accounts. We have compared the assumptions used by the Authority’s actuary against industry benchmarks. 
Based on the work performed we are able to conclude that management’s assumptions overall are 
reasonable.

We have also reviewed the:

• Completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to determine the estimate

• Reasonableness of the Authority’s share of LGPS pension assets.

• Reasonableness of increase/decrease in estimate

• Adequacy of disclosure of estimate in the financial statements

• Specific approach and assumptions used in relation to the impact of the McCloud case

and have no findings to being to your attention in this regard



Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious  
 We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

Assumption Actuary 
Value

PwC range Assessment

Discount rate 2.4% 2.4 – 2.5% 

Pension increase rate 2.5% 2.4 – 2.5% 

Salary growth 2.9% 2.9% 

Life expectancy – Males currently aged 45 / 65 24.1 / 22.1 
years

23.7–24.4 / 
21.5-22.8 
years 



Life expectancy – Females currently aged 45 / 65 26.6 / 24.4 
years

26.2-26.8 / 
24.1-25.1 
years



20



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 11

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Financial statements

Summary of management’s policy Audit Comments Assessment

Net pension liability – Impact of McCloud Judgement and 
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP)

McCloud Judgment

The Court of Appeal has ruled that there was age discrimination in the 
judges and firefighters pension schemes where transitional protections 
were given to scheme members.

Our Grant Thornton view was that this gave rise to a past service cost and 
liability within the scope of IAS 19 as the ruling created a new obligation.

The Government applied to the Supreme Court for permission to appeal 
this ruling, but this permission to appeal was unsuccessful. The case will 
now be remitted back to employment tribunal for remedy. 

The legal ruling around age discrimination (McCloud - Court of Appeal) 
has implications not just for pension funds, but also for other pension 
schemes where they have implemented transitional arrangements on 
changing benefits.

This was confirmed on 15 July 2019 in a statement released by The Chief 
Secretary to the Treasury.  The quote extracted and shown below is of 
greatest interest as it recognises remedies will need to be applied to the 
LGPS and hence supports the Authority’s stance in the recognition of 
increased liabilities:

“As ‘transitional protection’ was offered to members of all the main public 
service pension schemes, the government believes that the difference in 
treatment will need to be remedied across all those schemes. This 
includes schemes for the NHS, civil service, local government, teachers, 
police, armed forces, judiciary and fire and rescue workers. Continuing to 
resist the full implications of the judgment in Court would only add to the 
uncertainty experienced by members.”

https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-
answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2019-07-
15/HCWS1725/

Our Grant Thornton view was that the McCloud judgement gave rise to a past service cost and 
liability within the scope of IAS 19 as the ruling created a new obligation.

IAS 19.61 states 'An entity shall account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of 
a defined benefit plan, but also for any constructive obligation that arises from the entity's informal 
practices.' Our view is based on the fact there is a legal obligation. As set out in IAS 37.10, 'A legal 
obligation is an obligation that derives from:……….(c) other operation of law' i.e. the Court of 
Appeal ruling.

The IAS 37 criteria was considered to determine if a liability exists i.e. is there a present obligation 
as a result of a past event, is it probable than an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation and can a reliable estimate be made. Where there is a liability, it would be accounted for 
under IAS 19 due to the IAS 37 scope exclusion in respect of employee benefits (IAS 37.5d).

On the 12th June 2019 we wrote to all our local government clients setting out our views and 
recommending that bodies ask their actuaries to re-run the IAS19 reports  with the actuary 
reflecting the best estimate for restitution and providing sensitivity analysis for key assumptions. 

The Authority requested a revised actuarial assessment from Hymans Robertson and this was 
received on the 1st July 2019. 

The Authority has not adjusted its primary statements, taking the view, that the combined impact 
of the McCloud judgement (£1,226k) and Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) indexation 
(£141k), amounting to £1.367m compared to the net pension liability of £57.328m is not material 
to the financial statements and will be considered for future years’ actuarial valuations and that 
additional disclosure is appropriate.

We have reviewed the analysis performed by the actuary, and consider that the approach that has 
been taken to arrive at this estimate is reasonable. Although we are of the view that there is 
sufficient evidence to indicate that a liability is probable, we have satisfied ourselves that there is 
not a risk of material misstatement  as a result of this issue. We also acknowledge the significant 
uncertainties relating to the estimation of the impact on the Council’s liability. 

We have included this as an uncertainty within Appendix C and we will therefore be seeking 
Governance & Audit Committee’s agreement to management’s decision not to amend and specific 
reference in the Letter of Representation. 


Green

Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious  
 We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

21



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 12

Going concern

Financial statements

Our responsibility
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570). 

Going concern commentary

Management's assessment process

Management has considered:

• The Council’s historical balanced financial position 
including its level of reserves

• Oversight and assessment of financial risk and 
performance

• Looking forward to 2019/20 and beyond

Auditor commentary 

• We are satisfied that it is appropriate that management has used the going concern assumption in the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements

• In particular, we are satisfied that management has considered all pertinent areas relevant for consideration of the 
Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Work performed 

We reviewed management’s assessment by:

• Ensuring the assessment concurred with our knowledge 
of the Council

• Reviewing the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 
2019 to 2022 which was approved by Council in March 
2019.

Auditor commentary

• We are satisfied there is no material uncertainty about the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Concluding comments

We are satisfied the use of the going concern assumption 
is appropriate.

Auditor commentary

• We did not identify any events or conditions during the course of our audit that casted any significant doubt on the 
Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.

• There is no impact on our audit opinion which is unmodified in relation to Going Concern

22



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 13

Other communication requirements
Financial Statements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue Commentary

 Matters in relation to fraud • We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Policy, Finance and Development Committee. We have not been made aware 
of any other incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

 Matters in relation to related 
parties

• We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed

 Matters in relation to laws and 
regulations

• You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not 
identified any incidences from our audit work. 

 Written representations • A letter of representation has been requested from the Council, which is included in the Governance and Audit Committee papers 

 Confirmation requests from 
third parties 

• We requested from management permission to send requests to confirm year end bank and loan balances. This permission was 
granted and the requests were sent, and all received to confirm year end balances.

 Disclosures • Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements

 Audit evidence and 
explanations/significant 
difficulties

• All information and explanations requested from management was provided.

23



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 14

Other responsibilities under the Code
Financial statements

Issue Commentary

 Other information  We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements 
(including the Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report), is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Inconsistencies have been identified but have been adequately rectified by management. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this 
respect – refer to Appendix C

 Matters on which we report by 
exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:

 If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is 
misleading or inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit

 If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties

We have nothing to report on these matters

 Specified procedures for 
Whole of Government 
Accounts 

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation
pack under WGA group audit instructions. 

This is not required at South Kesteven District Council as the Council does not exceed the threshold of £500m for 2018/19.

 Certification of the closure of 
the audit

We are unable to certify the closure of the 2018/19 audit until we have completed the additional enquiries necessary for us to give our 
Value for Money conclusion.

24



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 15

Independence and ethics
We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 
statements 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered 
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical 
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix B

Independence and ethics

Audit and Non-audit services
For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified, as well 
as the threats to our independence and safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats.

Fees £ Threats identified Safeguards

Audit related

Housing Benefit (Subsidy) 
Assurance Process

7,250 Self-Interest (because this is a recurring fee) The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to 
independence as the fee  for this work is £7,250 in comparison to the total fee for the audit 
of £36,400 and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it 
is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the 
perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Certification of Housing 
capital receipts grant

3,000 Self-Interest (because this is a recurring fee) The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to 
independence as the fee  for this work is £3,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit 
of £36,400 and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it 
is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the 
perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Non-audit related

CFO Insights 5,000 The fee is a recurring subscription and, 
therefore, there is a self-interest threat. The 
tool provides information that will help inform 
decision making by informed management. 
The scope of our service does not include 
making decisions on behalf of management or 
recommending a particular course of action.

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to 
independence as the fee  for this work is £5,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit 
of £36,400 and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it 
is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the 
perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

25



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 16

Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. 

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 

Disclosure omission Detail Auditor recommendations Adjusted?

Cashflow • We identified that 
proceeds from 
investments had been 
incorrectly included in 
adjustments for items 
included in the net 
surplus/deficit 

That the following amendments are made to the cashflow

Operating activities: Adjustments for items included in the net surplus/deficit reduces from £85,470 to 
(£8,530)

Investing activities: Proceeds from short and long term investments increases from £0 to £94,000



Other disclosures • We identified a number of 
minor improvements 
required to other 
disclosures, none of which 
we consider merit 
reporting separately to 
Those Charged With 
Governance

The recommended changes are all being made 

Appendix A

26



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 17

Audit Adjustments

Impact of unadjusted misstatements
The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the 2018/19 audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements.  The Governance and Audit 
Committee  is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below:  

Detail

Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 
Statement £‘000

Statement of 
Financial Position    
£’000

Impact on total net 
expenditure £’000 Reason for not adjusting

1 Potential impact of the McCloud judgement and GMP

The legal ruling around age discrimination (McCloud - Court of 
Appeal) has implications for pension schemes where transitional 
arrangements on changing benefits have been implemented. 
Discussion is ongoing in the sector regarding the potential impact of 
the ruling on the financial statements of Local Government bodies 
alongside GMP indexation.

The Council has requested an estimate from its actuary of the 
potential impact of the McCloud ruling, GMP indexation and 
updated report to reflect the actual rate of return achieved by the 
pension fund. The actuary’s estimate was of a possible increase in 
pension liabilities of the McCloud judgement (£1,226k) and GMP 
indexation (£141k) resulting in an increase in the pension liability  
amounting to £1.367m compared to the net pension liability of 
£57.328m.

We have satisfied ourselves that there is not a risk of material 
misstatement as a result of this issue. We also acknowledge the 
significant uncertainties relating to the estimation of the impact on 
the Council’s liability.

£1,367

(Increase in Net Cost of 
Services)

£1,367

(Increase in Pension 
Liability)

(Balance Sheet Net 
Assets would move 

from                 
£218.546m to        
£217.179m)

£1,367

(Total 
Comprehensive 

Income & 
Expenditure would 

move from    
(£3.515m) to 
(£4.882m) )            

The figures provided by the 
actuary are an estimate, and 
not a formal actuarial 
valuation.

Although we are of the view 
that there is sufficient 
evidence to indicate that a 
liability is probable, we are 
satisfied that the differences 
are not likely to be material. 
This issue will be considered 
as part of the next actuarial 
valuation exercise in 2019/20

Overall impact £1,367 £1,367 £1,367

Appendix A

NB: If adjusted, the entries would impact upon the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, Balance Sheet and MIRS and various other accounts disclosures in relation 
to the pensions liability but would ultimately be reversed out to the pensions reserve under statute (Cr MIRS: Adjustments affecting Pension Reserve £1.367m and Dr Balance Sheet: 
Pension Reserve £1.367m). There would therefore be no impact on the General Fund or HRA reserves and council tax.

27



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 18

Fees

Audit Fees Proposed fee Final fee

Council Audit £36,400 £TBC

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £36,400 £TBC

Non Audit Fees Fees for other services
Fees 
£‘000

Audit related services:

Housing Benefit (Subsidy) Assurance Process

Certification of Housing capital receipts grant

£8,750

£3,000

Non-audit services:

CFO Insights £5,000

Appendix B

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

We are discussing with the Director of Finance the need for a small additional fee in respect of additional procedures we have had to carry out in respect of the McCloud case and also in 
response to a need identified by regulators for us to increase the work we do on the pension liability more generally and on the valuation of land and buildings. We are also likely to 
request an additional fee in respect of the further work required to give a Value for Money conclusion. Any additional fees will also need to be approved by PSAA Ltd.. We will report our 
final fee in our Annual Audit Letter.

28



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 19

Audit opinion

We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of South Kesteven District Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of South Kesteven District Council (the ‘Authority’) for 

the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow 

Statement, the Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement 

on the Housing Revenue Account Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and notes to the 

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The notes to the 

financial statements include the Notes to the Core Statements, Notes to the Housing Revenue 

Account Statement and Notes to the Collection Fund Statement. The financial reporting 

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC 

code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2019 

and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

 have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice 

on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 

(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 

the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We 

are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 

to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) 

require us to report to you where:

 the Strategic Director – Resources’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

 the Strategic Director – Resources has not disclosed in the financial statements any 

identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s 

ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least 

twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Strategic Director – Resources is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, ther than the 

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements 

does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our 

report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Appendix C

29



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 20

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the financial statements or our knowledge of the Authority obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 

apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 

misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, 

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit 

Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the 

Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider 

whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the ‘Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government:  Framework (2016)’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is 

misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are 

not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and 

controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 

statements, the other information published together with the financial statements in the 

Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is 

consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

 we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary 

to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, 

or at the conclusion of the audit; or; 

 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Strategic Director – Resources and Those Charged 

with Governance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the statement of accounts set 

out on page 15, the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of 

its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the 

administration of those affairs.  In this authority, that officer is the Strategic Director –

Resources. The Strategic Director – Resources is responsible for the preparation of the 

Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper 

practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2018/19, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such 

internal control as the Strategic Director – Resources (Chief Financial Offocer) determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Appendix C

Audit opinion 

30



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 21

In preparing the financial statements, the Strategic Director – Resources is responsible for 

assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there 

is an intention by government that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be 

provided. 

The Governance and Audit Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged 

with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 

the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 

description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Delay in certification of completion 

of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate in accordance with the 

requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice 

until we have completed our work to give our conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are unable to issue 

our conclusion until we have completed our consideration of matters that have been brought to 

our attention. We are satisfied that these matters do not have a material effect on the financial 

statements

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 

5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the 

Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 

Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and 

for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our 

audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Gregory, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Birmingham

Xx July 2019

Appendix C

Audit opinion 

31



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for South Kesteven District Council  |  2018/19 

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

32



Governance and Audit 
Committee
26 July 2019

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

        

Treasury Management Annual Report 2018/19
This report provides Governance and Audit Committee with the detail of the Council’s treasury 
management activity for the financial year 2018/19

Report Author

Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Financial Services

01476 406208

alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Sue Scott, Treasury Officer 12 July 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 15 July 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 16 July 2019

Recommendation to the decision maker

1. It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee:
 Note and approve the contents of the annual report on the Treasury Management 

Activity for 2018/19

33

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and performance against 
prudential and treasury indicators for 2018/19. This report meets the requirements of both 
the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential 
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1  Introduction

This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 
produce an annual treasury management review of activities and performance against 
prudential and treasury indicators for 2018/19. This report meets the requirements of both 
the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential 
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

2.2 For the financial year 2018/19 the Council adhered to the suggested minimum reporting 
requirements and members received the following reports:

 an annual treasury management strategy in advance of the year (Council 1st March 
2018 –CFM 453)  
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s19685/CFM453%20Appendix%20F%20TM%2
0Strategy%202018-19.pdf

 a mid-year  treasury update report (Governance and Audit Committee 13th December 
2018–CFM475) 
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21821/CFM475%20Treasury%20Management
%20Activity%202018-19%20-%20Mid%20Year%20Review.pdf

 an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to the 
strategy (this report) 

2.3 Governance and Audit Committee has delegated powers from Council to deal with matters 
relating to the Council’s Treasury Management activities.  Specifically, it has the 
responsibility to monitor, review and amend as appropriate the Council approved Treasury 
Management Strategy during the course of the financial year. The regulatory environment 
places a much greater onus on members for the review and scrutiny of treasury 
management policy and activities.  This report is important in that respect, as it provides 
details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the 
Council’s policies previously approved by members.  

2.4 The Economy (commentary provided by Link Asset Services, the Council’s Treasury 
Advisers)

 Strong growth in Quarter 2 and Quarter 3 was impacted by weak growth in Quarters 1 
and 4. This was to be expected given all the uncertainties over Brexit. 

 The MPC raised bank rate from 0.5% to 0.75% in August but again, due to Brexit 
uncertainty, it is unlikely that there will be any further rises until these clear.

 CPI inflation has been on a falling trend since November 2017, reaching a new low of 
1.8% in January 2019, before rising to 1.9% in February. 

34

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s19685/CFM453%20Appendix%20F%20TM%20Strategy%202018-19.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s19685/CFM453%20Appendix%20F%20TM%20Strategy%202018-19.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21821/CFM475%20Treasury%20Management%20Activity%202018-19%20-%20Mid%20Year%20Review.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21821/CFM475%20Treasury%20Management%20Activity%202018-19%20-%20Mid%20Year%20Review.pdf


 Wage inflation peaked to a new post financial crisis high of 3.5% (excluding bonuses) in 
the three months to December. Employers increased their hiring in the three months to 
January and the number of people in work surged by 222,000 which helped push down 
the unemployment rate to 3.9% its lowest rate since 1975. Correspondingly, the total 
level of vacancies has risen to new highs. 

 The rise in Wage inflation and the fall in CPI inflation is good news for consumers as 
their spending power is improving. The difference between the two figures is around 
1.5% (i.e. a real terms increase).

 PWLB rates peaked during October 2018, but since then they have been on a general 
downward trend. Although longer term rates did spike upwards during December and 
(apart from the 1-year rate) reached lows for the year at the end of March.

2.5 Treasury Position at 31 March 2019
A summary of the Councils position as at 31st March 2019 is as follows:

Actual borrowing position 31 March 2018 31 March 2019

Principal Average 
Rate

Principal Average 
Rate

Fixed Interest Rate Debt £102.322m 2.465% £99.100m 2.35%

Capital Financing 
Requirement

£109.926m £114.602m

Over/(Under) borrowing (£7.604m) (£16.503m)

Investment position 31 March 2018 31 March 2019

Principal Average 
Rate

Principal Average 
Rate

Fixed Interest Investments £58.000 m 0.96% £49.640m 1.08%

Variable Interest 
Investments

£6.785m 0.44% £10.774m 0.77%

Total Investments £64.785m 0.90% £60.414m 0.97%

Net borrowing position £37.537m £38.686m

2.6 The Treasury Management Strategy Agreed for 2018/19
The Strategy for 2018/19 was approved by Council on 1st March 2018. A key element of 
daily operations focuses on comparing current market conditions in conjunction with the Link 
credit rating list, using this as a tool for guidance, with the option to deviate from this 
guidance only when there are clear alternative options available to the Council.  Any 
decision of this nature is clearly documented for audit purposes.   The aim of the strategy is 
to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which enables diversification of 
investments and thus avoidance of risk whilst providing security.

35



2.7 Borrowing Requirement and Debt
The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is termed the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR) and is summarised below. Borrowing levels to fund capital 
expenditure have remained within the set levels.

31 March 2018
Actual

31 March 
2019

Estimated

31 March 
2019

Actual
CFR General Fund (£m) £3.856m £11.701m £11.754m

CFR  HRA (£m) £106.070m £102.848m £102.848m

Total CFR £109.926m £114.549m £114.602m

2.8 Actual debt management activity during 2018/19

Long Term Borrowing – There was no additional long term borrowing in 2018/19. The long-
term debt outstanding as at 31 March 2019 was £70.879m which is in relation to the HRA 
self-financing payment loans.

Short-Term/Temporary Borrowing – The short term borrowing that was outstanding as at 31 
March 2019 was £28.221m.

Internal Borrowing – A strategic investment property in Stamford was purchased in the year 
for £8.052m using internal funds.

Debt rescheduling - No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% 
differential between PWLB new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made 
rescheduling unviable.

2.9 Investments
Bank Rate was increased from 0.50% to 0.75% on 2 August 2018 and remained at that level 
for the rest of the year.  Market expectations for increases in Bank Rate have been pushed 
back to February 2020 because of uncertainty over Brexit and the sort of agreement that 
will be put in place.

2.10 Investment Outturn for 2018/19
Investment Policy – The Council’s investment policy is governed by Ministry of Housing, 
Communities for Local Government (MHCLG) Guidance, which has been implemented in 
the annual investment strategy approved on 1 March 2018. The investment activity during 
the year complied with the approved strategy, and the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 
As at 31 March 2019 the Council held short- and long-term investments of £60.414m and 
was compliant with the Council’s policy to hold not more than 35% of investments as long 
term. 

Short Term Fixed Deposits – In the year, short term fixed deposits were made on 36 
separate occasions for amounts ranging from £1 million to £4 million.  Short term fixed rate 

36



deposits amounted to £27 million as at 31 March 2019. There was also £29.414m invested 
in instant access deposit accounts and notice accounts including Money Market Funds. 

Long Term Fixed Deposits – Fixed term deposits were made on 2 occasions for amounts 
between £1 million to £2 million.  Total deposits of £4 million in total were held as at 31 
March 2019. 

The duration of the investments and the counterparties that the investments are placed with 
are shown in the following graphs.  When investments are placed the duration is determined 
by taking into consideration the treasury advice received from Link and the cash flow for the 
Council.  A range of counterparties are used as the council has recommended limits that 
can be placed with each institution which assists with risk management.

Overnight 2-30 31-91 92-182 183-273 274-365 366+
0

10000000

20000000

30000000

Total

Duration of investments

Number of days

£m

Abe
rde

en
 S

tan
da

rd
BNP

Clos
e B

rot
he

rs 
Ltd

 

Cum
be

rla
nd

DBS

Deu
tsc

he
 B

an
k M

MF

Fed
era

ted
 P

rim
e M

MF
GSIB

HELA
BA
Ins

igh
t

Inv
es

co
LG

IM
Llo

yd
s

Llo
yd

s B
an

k  
95

 D
NA

New
ca

stl
e

Nort
ha

mpto
ns

hir
e C

C

Nott
ing

ha
m

Prin
cip

ali
ty

Qata
r N

ati
on

al 
Ban

k 

San
tan

de
r 9

5 D
NA

Std 
Cha

rte
red

 95
 D

AY 

Sum
ito

mo M
its

ui 
BCE

W
es

t B
rom

wich
0

1000000
2000000
3000000
4000000
5000000
6000000
7000000
8000000
9000000

10000000

Counterparty Investments

Counterparty

Am
ou

nt
 £

m

The average annual interest rate of our portfolio was 0.97%, our budget assumption of 
average investment balances was £56.684m, compared to an invested portfolio of 
£65.774m.  Overall the performance rates were higher due to the rise in base rate. The 
actual amount of investment income generated was £712k compared to the budget figure 
of £498k. This was also due to the average investment balance being higher during the year 
than anticipated. 

2.11 Performance Indicators set for 2018/19
The following performance indicators were set:

 Debt – Average rate movement year on year
 2018/19 average rate 2.35% (2017/18 2.145%)

37



 Investments – Internal returns above the 7 day LIBID rate
 The Council were above the target 7-day LIBID rate of 0.507% 

through achieving average returns on variable rate short term 
deposits of 0.92%. 

Appendix 1 provides more details of the prudential and treasury indicators for 2018/19. 
As part of the role performed by our treasury advisors we are also provided with 
benchmarking comparative information across all their clients which helps the Council 
understand how its investment portfolio is performing in relation to others. 

The table below shows for each quarter analysis our average rate of return was higher whilst 
managing the risk, when compared to other district councils.  This reflects the positive work 
undertaken within the team to maximise our investment returns whilst balancing the 
exposure to risk.

Quarter ending SK

WARoR*

District 
WARoR*

SK

WARR**

District

WARR**

Q1 – June 2018 0.86% 0.69% 4.73% 3.36%

Q2 – Sept 2018 0.92% 0.78% 4.33% 3.33%

Q3 – Dec 2018 0.97% 0.83% 4.33% 3.31%

Q4 – Mar 2019 0.97% 0.88% 4.31% 3.23%

2.12 Summary
The Council’s Treasury Management functions have operated effectively during 2018/19 and 
have successfully achieved the following;

 Repayment of principal has been secured in all deposits;

 Council’s cash liquidity requirement has been met throughout the financial year;

 Investment income levels have been higher than predicted;

 Robust management of the Council’s debt position;

 Performance Indicators set for 2018/19 have been achieved.

 Benchmarking information shows the Council achieved a higher weighted average 
rate of return compared to the group average.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 None.

4 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
4.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and performance against 
prudential and treasury indicators for 2018/19.

38



5 Financial Implications 
5.1 These are included in the report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, S151 officer

6 Legal and Governance Implications 
6.1 This report provides details of the Councils performance in respect of Treasury Management 

against policy set out as part of the Budget and Policy Framework.  Members should note 
the performance, and scrutinise any elements to assist the role of the Governance and Audit 
Committee in its review of the Treasury Management Strategy.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Lee Sirdifield, Deputy Monitoring Officer

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
7.1 None.

8 Risk and Mitigation
8.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no exceptional / high risks have been 

identified.

9 Community Safety Implications 
9.1 None.

10 Other Implications (where significant) 
10.1 None.

11 Background Papers
11.1 CFM448 – Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2018/19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21821/CFM475%20Treasury%20Man
agement%20Activity%202018-19%20-%20Mid%20Year%20Review.pdf

11.2 CFM409 – Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19685/CFM453%20Appendix%20F%2
0TM%20Strategy%202018-19.pdf

12 Appendices
12.1 Appendix 1 – Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2018/19

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required):

N/a

Previously Considered by: N/a

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date:  N/a

39

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21821/CFM475%20Treasury%20Management%20Activity%202018-19%20-%20Mid%20Year%20Review.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21821/CFM475%20Treasury%20Management%20Activity%202018-19%20-%20Mid%20Year%20Review.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19685/CFM453%20Appendix%20F%20TM%20Strategy%202018-19.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19685/CFM453%20Appendix%20F%20TM%20Strategy%202018-19.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 – PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS 2018/19

During 2018/19, the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory requirements.  The key 
actual prudential and treasury indicators detailing the impact of capital expenditure activities 
during the year, with comparators, are as follows:

Actual prudential and 
treasury indicators

2017/18
Actual
£000

2018/19
Estimated

£000

2018/19
Actual
£000

Capital expenditure
 General Fund
 HRA
 Total

£5.429m
£7.163m

£12.592m

£19.873m
£5.727m

£25.600m

£16.050m
£4.948m

£20.998m

Capital Financing 
Requirement:

 General Fund
 HRA
 Total

£3.856m
£106.070m
£109.926m

£11.701m
£102.848m
£114.549m

£11.754m
£102.848m
£114.602m

Net borrowing £37.537m £50.415m £38.686m

External debt £102.322m £107.099m £99.100m

Investments
 Longer than 1 year
 Under 1 year
 Total

£6m
£58.785m
£64.785m

n/a
n/a
n/a

£4m
£56.414m
£60.414m

The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by S3 of 
the Local Government Act 2003.  The Council does not have the power to borrow above this 
level.  

The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of 
the Council during the year.  Periods where the actual position is either below or over the 
boundary is acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being breached. 

2017/18 2018/19

Authorised limit £126.765m £146.765m
Operational boundary £109.765m £109.765m

Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the 
trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long-term obligation costs net of investment 
income) against the net revenue stream.

 

41



Ratio of financing costs to net 
revenue stream

31 March 2018
actual

2018/19
Revised limits

31 March 2019
Actual

 General Fund (2.85%) (1.79%) (2.07%)
 HRA 23.18% 15.81% 12.56%

Net borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over the 
medium term, the Council’s external borrowing net of investments, must only be for a capital 
purpose.  This essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue 
expenditure.  Net borrowing should not therefore, except in the short term, have exceeded the 
CFR for 2018/19 plus the expected changes to the CFR over 2018/19 and 2019/20 from 
financing the capital programme.  This indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in 
advance of its immediate capital needs in 2018/19.  

The maturity structure of the debt portfolio was as follows:

31 March 2018
Actual

31 March 2019
Actual

Under 12 months £3.222m £28.221m*
12 months and within 24 
months £3.221m £3.222m

24 months and within 5 years £34.665m £9.665m
5 years and within 10 years £16.109m £16.109m
10 years and above £45.105m £41.883m
*£25m is payable March 2020

The exposure to fixed and variable rates was as follows:

31 March 2018
Actual

31 March 2019
Actual

Fixed rate (principal or 
interest)

£58.000m £31.000m**

Variable rate (principal or 
interest)

£6.785m £29.414m**

**The Council has increased investments with MMF and Notice accounts due to the interest 
rates that can be achieved

31 March 2018
Principal Rate/ Return 31 March 2019 

Principal Rate/ Return

Total debt £102.322m 2.465% £99.100m 2.35%

CFR 109.926m 114.602m
Over/ (under) 
borrowing (£7.604m) (£15.503m)

Total investments £64.785m 0.90% £60.414m 0.97%

Net debt £37.537m £38.686m

42


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2019
	6 External Audit - Annual Governance Report
	8 Treasury Management Annual Report 2018/19
	Appendix 1 Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2018-19 - FINAL


